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Ponfaen

SN022341         OS 25” 1st edition X.10             Pontfaen

The house and estate was, for several hundred years, in the possession of only three families; the ap Owens, the Vaughans and the  Laugharnes. The main holdings of the Laugharnes were in the St Brides and Haverfordwest areas,

1823    Sale to Henry Rees of Roch parish. Improvement of farm (and rebuilding of mansion?)

1845 or soon afterwards sold to Gower of Castel Malgwyn.

1863    Sale of estate inc land in Pontfaen, Morfil, Llanychlwydog and Llanychaer. House and farm stated to be in good condition but church (almost in the garden) in ruins. Purchased by Richard Arden, a wealthy London lawyer.

                    Richard Edward Arden JP  DL (Middlesex) born 1804, married three times.

                    (memorial window at east end, inscription in latin, ....obiit 1894 Percy filius.....)

                    High sheriff 1872.

          |                                                     |                  |                             I            

Evelyn Helen = Lt Col Thompson       Percy       Caroline = Camm       Frank        

Percy Arden, born 1840, restored the little church and placed memorials there to his father and to his sisters and brother.  Educated at Harrow and Brasenose College, Oxford; barrister -at-law and High Sheriff 1903. (Unmarried?)  Died 1909.

Frank died at Bruges in 1902 at the age of 50. 

1941    C.B. Camm sold Ponfaen and part of the estate to Mjr. John Francis DL of Carmarthen, father of Capt. John Francis, OBE, DL  whose daughter became the owner and occupier. 

The house is leased to a family who live in the “farm” or south end and who let the other part to summer visitors. It has long been divided into two halves. The southern part is believed to have been  the farmhouse and the other, for some time, a private residence. 

The “front” faced west looking over the parkland. The house is built above half-height cellars and the ground floor is approached by a short flight of steps with roof over from the (now partly grassed over turning circle). A large rectangular garden has been fenced off. The east gardens right up to the wall of the house are neatly maintained with modern plantings. 

A rough track climbs up the slope behind the farm buildings, diverging slightly from them; straight ahead is a large pile of earth and stones. There is no sign of the boundary (hedge?) which ran westwards nor of the roofless building. The trees are much less densely planted; some older ones survive and there are new plantings to give a park effect.

The path system of the kitchen garden has disappeared. A hedge has been established along the line of the central path and east-west across and new (fruit?) trees have been planted within. There seems to have been no walled garden; merely the edge of a field with a high hedge bank along the east side.

Documents in file:

Text

Two photograph of OS 25” map

OS 25” map (copy/enlargements from photographs 3)

Three colour photographs of mansion, church and church window

Photograph of west front of mansion c1871 (2)

Photocopy  (of copy?) of rent rolls in possession of tenant.

